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Submitted  in conjunction with RFQ 2012-1
The following are the Questions submitted to the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS) in response to RFQ 2012-1 that has been issued for Actuarial Consulting Services.  PMRS’ responses follow each question.

1.	Is PMRS entering into the contract with the actuarial service provider on behalf of the individual employers? Please provide the form of contract between an individual employer and PMRS. 

Under the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Law, the PMRS Board is vested with the exclusive authority to contract for actuarial services on behalf of the system. This contract is between the PMRS Board and the successful bidder.  

2.	Would PMRS and the Commonwealth agree to specify that any claims brought by the Commonwealth or PMRS against the Contractor be filed with the Commonwealth Board of Claims? 

PMRS will not negotiate nor agree to exclusive jurisdiction before the Board of Claims for any claim raised by the Commonwealth or PMRS under this contract.

3.	What were the actuarial fees paid during 2011? 

PMRS expenses for actuarial services in calendar year 2011 were $223,675.

4.	What are the fixed unit costs for 2011 and 2012 by type of service under the current contract? 

For 2011 the fixed unit cost for defined benefit plans is $225, new plan (per valuation) $675, and plan modifications (per valuation) $484.  In 2012 the rates are $116, $696, and $498 respectively. 

5.	The RFQ refers to “cash balance plans” but the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation refers to “defined contribution plans”.  Please confirm that the cash balance plan is considered a defined contribution plan.

The reference in the RFQ is correct.  In late 2010, PMRS corrected the characterization of approximately 200 plans that operate like a defined contribution plan (except for the crediting of a stated rate of investment return), but are, indeed, cash balance plans.

6.	Please provide a grid showing the following information for each defined benefit and cash balance plan within PMRS as of the latest available valuation date:  plan name, market value of assets, actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued liability (if applicable), payroll, number of active participants, number of total participants. 

PMRS maintains the data sought in various databases.  The information is not compiled nor maintained in a format that can be easily distributed by PMRS.  The data is available from two public sources:  the PMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report lists all enrolled plans as of the end of a calendar year, and the Public Employee Retirement Commission publishes a compilation of all filed actuarial valuations required under Act 205 of 1984.  Please see:
 http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt/community/publications/3194/municipal_pension_plan_report/525535  and 

http://www.pmrs.state.pa.us/publications/index.html

Cross checking the data will provide all of the requested data except the number of total plan participants.

7.	For the “additional” fixed cost to comply with the GASB 25 and GASB 27 Exposure Drafts reporting requirements, should they be adopted as issued, can we assume that no plans in PMRS will have an asset depletion date?  If not, what is the expected number of plans that will have an asset depletion date? 

While not yet analyzed, it is assumed that NO currently PMRS administered-plan will have an asset depletion date.

8.	Regarding the hourly rate for special projects, can the hourly rate vary based on a person’s skill and experience level (e.g. consultant versus analyst)?  Or should a single hourly rate for all persons be provided?

The RFQ requires one hourly rate.

9.	When is participant data expected to be available to the actuary for the January 1, 2012 valuation?

While the audited data varies year by year, it should be assumed that the data will be available by September 1 of each year.

10.	May the electronic copy of the proposal be in pdf format?  May appendices be provided in pdf format?

We reference Part I-14 of the RFQ:

…In addition to the paper copies of the proposal, Contractors shall submit two (2) complete and exact copies of the entire proposal (Technical, Cost and Disadvantaged Business Submittals, along with all requested documents) on CD-ROM or Flash drive in Microsoft Office or Microsoft Office-compatible format.  The electronic copy must be a mirror image of the paper copy and any spreadsheets must be in Microsoft Excel.

Appendices may be submitted in .pdf format. 

11.	Please confirm that the response to Part II-9 should be submitted with the Technical Proposal. 

Proposals received in response to the RFQ will be evaluated upon their completeness and responsiveness to all the items sought in the RFQ, including those identified in Part II-9.

12.	On page 21 of the RFQ, please confirm that item B should end with “for each cash balance plan” instead of “for each defined benefit plan”.

Item B is correct as set forth in the RFQ.  To avoid any question, we provide it again:

B.	A cost per cash balance plan separately for each year of the four-year contract for general actuarial consulting and the provision of the annual system-wide valuation as well as the biennial valuations for each defined benefit plan.  

13.	Regarding the Act 205 and Act 293 reports, items I and J on page 28 of the RFQ appear to conflict.  Item I says the Offeror will submit the data necessary to PMRS staff to complete the reports.  Item J says the Offeror will review and sign the actuarial section of the reports and prepare the demographic and actuarial exhibits.  Under this contract, who would be responsible for completing the demographic and actuarial exhibits on the Act 205 and Act 293 reports?

Under the current process PMRS provides the actuary with the financial, membership and plan benefit data.  The actuary returns to PMRS the raw numbers to place in the demographic and actuarial sections of the reports.  PMRS staff prints the reports and provides the actuary with the final printed version for review and signature.  PMRS staff attests to the Demographic and Financial Sections while the actuary attests to the Actuarial section.

14.	Regarding the Act 205 and Act 293 reports, who is responsible for completing the plan provisions and actuarial methods and assumptions information? 

PMRS provides the actuary with the plan provisions and is responsible for the data contained in the reports describing the plan provisions.  PMRS also prints the actuarial assumptions and methods set forth in the reports, but these are reviewed and approved by the actuary prior to submittal to the appropriate plan sponsors and the Public Employee Retirement Commission. 

15.	Given that the contract for services will be from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016, please confirm that the system-wide valuations as of January 1, 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015 (not 2013 through 2016 as stated on page 27) are required under the contract.  In addition, please confirm that the Act 293 reports as of January 1, 2016 will not be required. 

There is an error on page 27 of the RFQ.  The system-wide valuations that will need to be prepared under this RFQ are for January 1 of each of the following years: 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015.  The Offeror will NOT be responsible for the January 1, 2016 Act 293.

16.	May we get copies of Appendix D and Appendix E in their entirety (these were not attached to the RFQ in our possession)?

The original posting of the RFQ has been revised to include Appendices D and E.  Additionally copies can be obtained by contacting the Issuing Officer for this RFQ:  Ms. Wanita Hoke, Chief, Operations Division, Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 1165, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1165, (wahoke@pa.gov).

17.	When was the last time the actuarial services were put out for bid?

A Request for Proposal was issued in July 2006.

18.	Are there any service concerns with the current actuary?

The current actuarial firm retained by PMRS is fulfilling its contractual obligations.

19.	Is the current actuary permitted to bid? 

The current actuarial firm retained by PMRS is allowed to respond to the RFQ.

20.	In what format, e.g. Excel, Access, other format is member data submitted to the actuary? 

Currently the data flow between PMRS and the existing actuary is primarily via Excel.

21.	How many hours does the current actuary spend reconciling data issues?

PMRS does not track or have direct knowledge of the hours used by the current actuary spent in reconciling data issues.

22.	What types of plan administration software or actuarial tools does the plan currently use, i.e. benefit calculators, pension administration system, projections, benefit modeling, other?

PMRS operates its pension administration services using software licensed from CPAS Systems Inc.   CPAS is a global supplier of pension administration software systems intended to provide solutions for public pension plans, private pension plans, plan sponsors, third-party administrators and financial institutions. 
